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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone, and welcome to this hearing of the

          4  Committee on Contracts. I'm Council Member Yvette D.

          5  Clarke, and I'm chair of this Committee.

          6                 I want to thank everyone for your

          7  patience. We have several things going on

          8  simultaneously here, unfortunately, today, but we

          9  did feel that this was a very important hearing and

         10  so we want to proceed with all deliberate speed at

         11  this point to make sure we get all of our testimony

         12  in.

         13                 Today we will hear testimony

         14  regarding proposed Intro. 180-A, the Disadvantaged

         15  Business Enterprise Bill, DBE.

         16                 This bill creates a race-neutral

         17  program to enhance procurement opportunity for folks

         18  who are both socially disadvantaged, and

         19  economically disadvantaged.

         20                 As you all know, Local Law 129 made

         21  the MWBE program a matter of law in this City. That

         22  law was long overdue, and we all put a lot of work

         23  into it over a very long period of time, and I'm

         24  very proud of it.

         25                 Passage of that law was a personal
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          2  goal of mine. You could even say it was a matter of

          3  family pride.

          4                 It was a critical step in the right

          5  direction, and I'm committed as the Chair of this

          6  Committee to provide the type of robust, active and

          7  substantive oversight that the MWBE community

          8  deserves.

          9                 One thing that we know as legislators

         10  is that sometimes one law or one program cannot

         11  accomplish all of our goals in a given area.

         12                 During the crafting of the Minority

         13  and Woman-Owned Business Enterprise legislation, we

         14  heard from stakeholders who felt that the

         15  legislation and the disparity study that served as

         16  its factual predicate did not go far enough.

         17                 MWBE was carefully and narrowly

         18  tailored to meet the specific disparities that were

         19  revealed by the study, but this is a Council that

         20  refuses to leave hard-working people behind. That is

         21  why we provided, in the Minority Woman-Owned

         22  Business Enterprise Law for a follow-up disparity

         23  study. It is also the reason for the present

         24  legislation.

         25                 We can perform 100 disparity studies
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          2  and never identify and classify or categorize every

          3  disenfranchised individual who is out there

          4  struggling in business. That is the limit of social

          5  science, that people are complex, and that it is not

          6  always as easy to fit people's experiences and their

          7  identities into the predetermined boxes. Sometimes

          8  the best way to characterize an individual is to

          9  evaluate him or her on a case-by-case basis. The DBE

         10  is created for this type of business person.

         11                 For the one who is not visible in the

         12  disparity study, yet, who is nevertheless a victim

         13  of social and economic disadvantage.

         14                 If you look at the definition of a

         15  disadvantaged business enterprise in the present

         16  bill, you will notice that it is race neutral. It is

         17  race neutral but it is not experience neutral.

         18                 If you are a business person who

         19  knows what it feels like to have been held back in

         20  life merely because of your social standing, if

         21  you've also felt that this thing of an empty pocket,

         22  an empty bank account, an insufficient credit, and

         23  if despite these barriers you still wish, you still

         24  believe that you are capable of doing business with

         25  the City of New York, then this bill is for you.
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          2                 If you are socially and economically

          3  disadvantaged, yet you are willing to roll up its

          4  sleeves, then this City must, it must do the work

          5  that it takes to do business with you.

          6                 That is what DBE is all about. It is

          7  a bill to enhance opportunities with the

          8  disadvantaged to do business with the City. I want

          9  that. We should all want that. And we should all

         10  work toward that.

         11                 As with all legislation with every

         12  program, the key to the whole thing is active

         13  oversight and diligent responsible implementation.

         14                 This Committee will remain very

         15  active in the area of MWBE oversight. We're not

         16  giving this or any other administration a pass, and

         17  when the DBE bill becomes law, we will be just as

         18  focused.

         19                 Before we proceed, I'd like to

         20  recognize the other members of the Committee who are

         21  here today. To my extreme right we have Council

         22  Member Diana Reyna, who is not a member of the

         23  Committee but is the prime sponsor of this bill. And

         24  Council Member Kendall Stewart, a member of this

         25  Committee. Council Member Stewart from Brooklyn,
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          2  Council Member Diana Reyna, representing both

          3  Brooklyn and Queens, and I believe we have a

          4  representative staffer from one of my colleagues,

          5  Melissa Mark-Viverito's office, who unfortunately is

          6  in conflict, just as I am, with another hearing

          7  taking place simultaneously. And I expect that we'll

          8  see colleagues coming to and fro.

          9                 Council Member Robert Jackson is up

         10  in Albany today fighting for our school kids, but he

         11  is here with us in spirit.

         12                 I'd like to also thank my new policy

         13  analyst, Ms. Sheila Hogan, Ms. Anita Taylor, my

         14  Chief of Staff, Mr. Danny Serrano, the Committee's

         15  Counsel, and now I'd like to turn this portion of

         16  the hearing over to Council Member Diana Reyna, who

         17  as I've stated is the prime sponsor of this bill.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you Madam

         19  Chair Yvette Clarke.

         20                 I just wanted to thank Council Member

         21  Clarke for her due diligence as Chair of this

         22  Committee and in hosting a hearing considering the

         23  heavy schedules we are leading here in the Council

         24  in the midst of budget season as well.

         25                 This is a very important and
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          2  monumental legislation. I want to thank the works of

          3  Daniel Serrano for having done such an enormous

          4  amount of work and continues to do so, our policy

          5  analyst, as well as just the commitment of the body

          6  of the Council.

          7                 This legislation is once again the

          8  enhancement of procurement opportunities, not just

          9  did we see the need for legislation, but for decades

         10  we've depended on Executive Orders that go nowhere,

         11  and once and for all we've finally legislated an

         12  MWBE program that will be overseen by the Department

         13  of Small Business Services, the Mayor's Office of

         14  Contracts, and it is up to this body to continue to

         15  enforce and hold accountable all agencies throughout

         16  the City so that we can see greater opportunities

         17  for those women, minority-owned businesses that so

         18  continually are left out of a process perhaps based

         19  on a lack of information, perhaps based on reasons

         20  for which I'm not certain of are not certified,

         21  cannot be found, but we have to stop making excuses

         22  for all of these intentions because the time is now

         23  to be able to say that we're going to be able to

         24  allow for the doors to be welcomed for all New

         25  Yorkers.
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          2                 Small businesses are the fabric of

          3  this City. We want to continue to make a commitment

          4  to them. Businesses whose owners may not appear in

          5  the disparity study that this Council funded, but

          6  who are nevertheless burdened by social and economic

          7  disadvantages will be protected by the intentions of

          8  this particular law that we hope to have passed with

          9  full support of not only this Council but also the

         10  Mayor's Office.

         11                 And it is as the Chair of the

         12  Contracts Committee has already mentioned, a race

         13  neutral program that adds an additional layer of

         14  opportunity in every industry category that is also

         15  addressed by the MWBE program.

         16                 I'd like to thank once again everyone

         17  who has participated in just making certain that we

         18  move forward all possibilities for small business.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you,

         21  Council Member Reyna.

         22                 Council Member Stewart, did you want

         23  to make any comments at this time?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.
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          2                 I'm particularly happy that we can

          3  move forward on this piece of legislation. First of

          4  all, I want to thank you for your leadership in this

          5  instance, and I want to thank my colleague Diana

          6  Reyna for having the insight to come up with this

          7  legislation so that we can at least make the big

          8  difference as far as our minority and women

          9  businesses are concerned.

         10                 This bill basically, as I see it,

         11  going to be forcing the Commissioner to monitor and

         12  implement, you know, things like financial and

         13  technical and managerial and bonding and insurance

         14  and guide all the things that are necessary to make

         15  sure that these businesses succeeded.

         16                 And I'm happy that we are moving

         17  forward on that, and we're going to be looking

         18  forward to see a year from now how well that the

         19  City did its job.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you,

         22  Council member.

         23                 We're going to move directly into our

         24  testimony and ask Mr. Andrew Schwartz, Deputy

         25  Commissioner from the New York City Department of
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          2  Small Business Services to bring his testimony at

          3  this time.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          5  Thank you, Chairwoman Clarke, and members of the

          6  Contracts Committee.

          7                 I'm Andrew Schwartz, First Deputy

          8  Commissioner for the New York City Department of

          9  Small Business Services. I'm joined by Kerry Jew,

         10  Assistant Commissioner for the Division of Economic

         11  and Financial Opportunity, which oversees the MWBE

         12  program, and Larry Scott Blackman, our Assistant

         13  Commissioner for Governmental, Intergovernmental

         14  Relations.

         15                 Thank you for inviting me to testify

         16  today on Intro. 180-A, the City's effort to increase

         17  contracting opportunities for disadvantaged business

         18  enterprises, or DBEs.

         19                 The City Council and the

         20  Administration are both dedicated to this issue, and

         21  it's clear we share the same objectives to ensure

         22  that these businesses obtain a stronger share of

         23  City contracts.

         24                 Through Executive Order 71 issued in

         25  September of 2005, Mayor Bloomberg recognized the
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          2  need for a more aggressive program to level the

          3  playing field for minority and woman-owned

          4  businesses in procurement.

          5                 One mechanism set forth in the

          6  Executive Order was the creation of a disadvantaged

          7  business enterprise designation for business owners

          8  who have experienced social and economic

          9  disadvantage.

         10                 We're happy to see that working with

         11  the Council we have a way to bring benefits of Local

         12  Law 129 to other disadvantaged business owners.

         13  Similar to the goals included in the local law,

         14  Intro. 180-A will set a Citywide aspirational goal

         15  for DBEs, for contracts and subcontracts under $1

         16  million.

         17                 It's our intent that this legislation

         18  will encourage greater DBE participation and City

         19  agencies will be able to demonstrate substantial

         20  progress towards meeting goals over the next few

         21  years.

         22                 As with the City's progress on

         23  reaching MWBE utilization goals, progress on

         24  reaching DBE goals will also be reported to the

         25  Council on a semi-annual basis.
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          2                 However, even before City agencies

          3  can begin to plan for meeting goals, the City DBE

          4  certification program must be developed and eligible

          5  companies must apply for certification.

          6                 Intro 180-A provides for

          7  certification of businesses owned by individuals who

          8  can demonstrate that they are socially and

          9  economically disadvantaged.

         10                 Once certified, the businesses will

         11  be added to the list maintained by SBS. We share

         12  that list with agency purchasing staff to promote

         13  the use of DBEs in City procurement.

         14                 As the proposed legislation makes

         15  clear, SBS, through rules to be promulgated by the

         16  Commissioner will establish standards for

         17  certification.

         18                 In gearing up for this new law we

         19  have looked to the guidelines of the federal

         20  Disadvantaged Business Program, or 8-A as it's

         21  known, as a model.

         22                 Under 8-A, individuals seeking

         23  certification must demonstrate by a preponderance of

         24  the evidence that they meet the two-part test of

         25  economic and social disadvantage. Economic
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          2  disadvantage generally requires a showing that the

          3  business owner's personal net worth is less than

          4  $250,000. This standard excludes the value of equity

          5  the individual has in their company and a personal

          6  residence. Once a business owner's net worth exceeds

          7  $750,000, the business will no longer qualify for

          8  the program.

          9                 Social disadvantage requires a more

         10  complex analysis of an individual's personal

         11  experiences that have negatively impacted the

         12  advancement in the business world.

         13                 Specifically the test requires that

         14  an individual cite one objective factor, such as

         15  race, ethnicity, gender, disability or long-term

         16  residence in an environment isolated from mainstream

         17  America, and demonstrate how that factor has

         18  disadvantaged the individual's advancement in the

         19  business world.

         20                 In other words, how the individual

         21  has been negatively impacted in education,

         22  employment or business. Denial of access to capital,

         23  being turned down for loans, employment or admission

         24  to school are factors that can be evidence of social

         25  disadvantage.
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          2                 In addition, the individual must show

          3  that the impact suffered occurred more than once

          4  over an extended period of time.

          5                 Thus, applicants to the federal

          6  program are encouraged to submit various types of

          7  documentary evidence, including court or

          8  administrative findings of discrimination,

          9  affidavits of independent third-parties that can

         10  verify statements of the owner, personnel and

         11  payroll records, rejection letters and job

         12  application and denials of credit.

         13                 Federal rules also require the

         14  applicant's company have been in business for at

         15  least two years, or demonstrate an ability to

         16  succeed prior to certification as a DBE.

         17                 As you can see, these tests require

         18  an extensive individual analysis to determine

         19  eligibility for certification. At this point we're

         20  not aware of how many businesses may be eligible to

         21  enter into the program, and how many will be willing

         22  to seek certification.

         23                 The addition of a DBE program is

         24  consistent with the objectives of SBS and the

         25  Mayor's Office of Contract Services to enhance
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          2  existing race and gender neutral initiatives by

          3  encouraging utilization of disadvantaged businesses

          4  in City procurement.

          5                 The enhanced leadership, better

          6  policies and stronger partnerships that we have

          7  forged with State and independent organizations in

          8  developing the MWBE program will support this new

          9  initiative.

         10                 We have increased staff working on

         11  the MWBE program to almost 30 and we appreciate the

         12  support the Council has provided in helping achieve

         13  this.

         14                 Currently staff is fully engaged in a

         15  daily intensive effort to implement the provisions

         16  of Local Law 129.

         17                 We are aggressively informing the

         18  business community of the program and benefits of

         19  certification. We are also working closely with the

         20  purchasing staff of City agencies to ensure that

         21  they fully understand their role in implementing the

         22  new program and how it will affect their procurement

         23  practices.

         24                 We have structured the Division of

         25  Economic and Financial Opportunity into five units
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          2  to successfully handle all aspects of

          3  implementation.

          4                 Our certification unit works to

          5  certify companies and make that process easier.

          6                 Working with our external affairs

          7  unit we have put together events and campaigns to

          8  increase awareness of the program and certification.

          9                 Recently on the steps of City Hall,

         10  members of the agency worked with Council members to

         11  promote certification and we look forward to working

         12  together on many more similar events.

         13                 Our procurement unit meets with

         14  purchasing staff of agencies to set goals, develop

         15  utilization plans, and identify ways to connect

         16  certified companies to procurement opportunities.

         17                 This unit also works with the

         18  companies to market what they sell to the right

         19  people at the right agencies with the right

         20  opportunities.

         21                 In conjunction with the Mayor's

         22  Office of Contract Services, our Data Analysis Unit

         23  is undertaking the effort to track purchasing in the

         24  many new categories established by the local law,

         25  and for the first time we have a unit devoted to
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          2  capacity building that will offer enhanced classroom

          3  training, one-on-one assistance to certified

          4  companies.

          5                 In addition, we continue to work with

          6  our MWBE advisory board, a group of business and

          7  community leaders from across a variety of

          8  industries and communities throughout New York City.

          9  Chaired by Hayward Davenport, who heads the Minority

         10  Business Development Agency of the US Department of

         11  Commerce, the Advisory Board played an important

         12  role in developing the policies of the new MWBE

         13  program and guides our expansion and improvement of

         14  services.

         15                 As we implement Local Law 129 and the

         16  new DBE program, we look forward to working with the

         17  Council to ensure that we devise a program that is

         18  effective, meaningful, and which we can all be proud

         19  of.

         20                 I'd be happy to answer any questions

         21  you have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you very

         23  much, First Deputy Commissioner.

         24                 We appreciate your testimony here

         25  today, and I'd like to just start by nothing that

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  SBS agrees and understands that the DBE is a

          3  separate program for MWBE, does it not?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          5  Yes. It is separate certification, it is separate

          6  analysis of the applicant's background.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And unlike the

          8  MWBE program, DBE is race neutral. Has SBS given any

          9  thought in terms of rule-making to what some of the

         10  criteria are that it will consider in determining

         11  social disadvantage?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         13  Yes, Chairwoman. As you point out, and I think

         14  Councilwoman Reyna did as well, it is a race-neutral

         15  program, and that we will have to implementing rules

         16  that we are looking at the 8-A program as the model

         17  and identified some of these areas of what would

         18  constitute social disadvantage.

         19                 It can still be race or gender but it

         20  could also be disability, veteran status, as well

         21  that would be the objective factor and to show how

         22  that has impacted on the individual as it tried to

         23  move forward with their business.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: After all, the

         25  federal DBE classification makes minority status a
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          2  presumption of social disadvantage, but that is

          3  because they do not have a stand-alone MWBE program,

          4  such as ours, such a presumption would not be

          5  legally appropriate.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ: I

          7  agree with what you just said, yes, that it is a

          8  different program in the sense that the federal

          9  program has the M's in the DBE program. And we

         10  already have the MWBE program, so... I would also

         11  agree that the supporting framework for it is

         12  different.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: We've been joined

         14  by Council Member Letitia James of Brooklyn, and I

         15  know that Council Member Kendall Stewart has a

         16  question at this time.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         18  Madam Chair.

         19                 In your testimony, I think it's the

         20  second page, second paragraph, you speak about

         21  personal net worth to be about 250,000?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         23  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: In order to

         25  get into part of this program.
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          2                 And also, you also said that once a

          3  business owner nets what exceeds $750,000 the

          4  business will no longer qualify for this program.

          5                 I feel this is too low, because if

          6  you look at any business that may just start up, in

          7  a short time they will accumulate, maybe they own

          8  the property that they establish, and any property

          9  in New York City that you look around now is going

         10  to cost a lot of money. Now, when you say

         11  establishes a net worth of let's say $750,000,

         12  you're no longer in the program. It means that a lot

         13  of business may start up one year and accumulate

         14  that type of asset and then they no longer can

         15  participate.

         16                 Could you explain that?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         18  Yes. I think this is, we're talking about the

         19  economic disadvantage part of the test, and we are

         20  looking at the federal rules as a model and we are

         21  beginning that process, and there will be a hearing

         22  on the rules as we set them forth. But that is the

         23  parameters under the federal program, starting at

         24  250 and 750. I know people can differ on what's an

         25  appropriate amount. And, again, it is personal net
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          2  worth, so that is, I think we say separate and apart

          3  from the equity that the person has in the business.

          4  So, if the business is succeeding and there's

          5  property owned in the business's name, that would

          6  not impact on the owner.

          7                 We're looking at personal net worth

          8  and I think the federal guideline is at 750, and the

          9  need for the program.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I can

         11  understand that if you were in Alabama, but if you

         12  were in New York City, sir, I don't see that here.

         13  Because we may not look at our net worth in that

         14  fashion because things are here so expensive.

         15                 But if you really look, speak with an

         16  accountant, this figure is very small to consider

         17  net worth for anyone that is maybe just have a job

         18  or maybe just starting out.

         19                 $250,000 net work, it's minuscule.

         20  And I don't know exactly what it does include, but

         21  to me that is very small in New York City.

         22                 If you were talking about another

         23  state where the average income might be much less

         24  and they may not have any other type of worth, then

         25  it might go for that, but in New York City, I think

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  it's a very low figure that we are grappling with,

          3  and it means as we leave an array of folks who will

          4  definitely need this help and will not be able to

          5  get this help.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          7  Well, you know, we would be interested in hearing

          8  alternative numbers that might work as we go forward

          9  with this.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay, I'd like to

         11  acknowledge that we've also been joined by our

         12  legislative director for the New York City Council,

         13  former Counsel to the Contracts Committee, Mr.

         14  Robert Newman, and call upon the sponsor of this

         15  legislation, Council Member Reyna, at this time for

         16  her questions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

         18  Madam Chair.

         19                 Good afternoon, Commissioner. I just

         20  wanted to ask, moving forward, hence the passing of

         21  this legislation, before you get to the point where

         22  you start drafting rules, one of the biggest

         23  concerns in the business community is the fact that

         24  we have staff within agencies that set forth rules,

         25  never having been a business person, a business
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          2  owner, never running a business, so that by personal

          3  experience they feel there should be an inclusive

          4  process. And, frankly, I could understand how that

          5  in practical matters can affect negatively or

          6  positively the impact of surviving as a business

          7  owner, especially in the City of New York, and so

          8  what I'm asking right now to you, being the

          9  representative to the Commissioner of the Department

         10  of Small Business Services, is the commitment that

         11  before we move into creating rules, that we work

         12  with identified individuals who have the business

         13  experience, having been business owners themselves,

         14  or currently being business owners themselves, to

         15  sit down with executives in the Department of Small

         16  Business Services to determine what rules will be

         17  applicable with this program.

         18                 Because I can't allow for this

         19  particular legislation to help circumvent groups

         20  that are obviously not going to be qualifying, and

         21  very savvy within the system to be able to say that

         22  they qualify because they're socially and

         23  economically disadvantaged.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         25  Councilwoman, I appreciate those comments and we
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          2  would look, we would be willing to sit down with a

          3  group of businesses to take in their comments.

          4                 We feel we have a pretty wide network

          5  in our agency, as you know, through the Business

          6  Solution Centers that we have in the five boroughs

          7  where we interact with many businesses there. We

          8  have our certified MWBEs now, and we have our

          9  advisory board that I made mention of, as well as

         10  the Workforce Investment Board, which gives us

         11  access to a lot of business owners across a wide

         12  spectrum, and at the same time, obviously when the

         13  bill passes, we want to get on with drafting the

         14  rules, and that has its own public notice process

         15  that will put the rules out, will get response. But

         16  I understand you're talking about something even

         17  prior to that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mm-hmm.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         20  And we would be willing to work with you on some

         21  type of focus group of businesses that could be

         22  helpful in having input.

         23                 Because as I say, we're looking at

         24  the federal rules as a model, but we are not

         25  adapting them wholesale. So, we would appreciate
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          2  that input.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: You k now, at

          4  the federal level, the DBE program at the federal

          5  level doesn't work if you're looking at the

          6  perspectives of the business owners, and so I want

          7  there to be a marriage here where we're going to

          8  constitute what hasn't worked at the level of the

          9  federal government, in the eyes of a business owner

         10  so that you can adopt rules that will take that into

         11  consideration, so that we're not mimicking failure.

         12                 I'm understanding that you are open

         13  to making certain that before any rules are set

         14  forth, we will do that.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         16  Yes. We will discuss this with your staff, how to go

         17  about --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Fantastic.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         20  -- Within a timely way that we can get the rules

         21  out there and take into consideration these types of

         22  comments.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Fantastic.

         24                 And just to stay on, as far as the

         25  DBE program is concerned, how is SBS going to be
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          2  prepared to detect any fraud?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          4  That's basically through our certification unit. As

          5  you know, there's always the poll and attention of

          6  certifying qualified companies, whether they're

          7  minority owned or women owned, and we face those

          8  same types of circumstances, whether the company is

          9  actually, you know, a front, and, you know, people

         10  want their certification done swiftly, and at the

         11  same time, everyone wants to make sure that we are

         12  careful. And the type of documentation that we

         13  require is under oath affidavits with the ability to

         14  audit and check when we have suspicions we feel

         15  gives us that type of quality control.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: This is not

         17  going to be an easy task, I know. But I am confident

         18  that DSBS is going to move forward in ensuring that

         19  there will not be any fraud, that you will work with

         20  the business community, as well as this Council. And

         21  I just wanted to ask, as far as process is

         22  concerned, how will -- and as you know, a contract

         23  goes as far as going to the Comptroller's Office,

         24  how will the Comptroller's Office finalize a

         25  contract and detect it as a DBE contract?
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          2                 How is it in place for the MWBE?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          4  The Comptroller registers contracts that there's a

          5  registration package and I'm guessing that there

          6  will be reference in there if it's an MWBE. I'm not

          7  sure what the Comptroller wants to set up in terms

          8  of their own tracking. We'll work with them on

          9  anything they want. But our tracking mechanisms are

         10  really on the side with the Mayor's Office of

         11  Contract Services through the Financial Management

         12  Services, which I believe the Comptroller is part

         13  of, as well.

         14                 So, I think he will be able to access

         15  any of the same information that we do, which is

         16  what I was talking about when I said our data

         17  tracking is to work closely within the MFS to set up

         18  all the flagging in there so that we'll be able to

         19  get the data from a central location.

         20                 We've talked about this before. This

         21  is very challenging because this law creates new

         22  categories by which to track the companies on. Even

         23  under the old program in the nineties, it was just

         24  whether a certain, you know, the M group itself was

         25  getting a contract, now we're tracking it by
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          2  Hispanic, Black, Asian, and DBE will be an

          3  additional category, as well as by across

          4  industries, construction, professional services,

          5  standard services and goods.

          6                 It's actually very challenging, and

          7  we would be happy to discuss some of what we are

          8  doing to make that happen.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And, so, the

         10  implementation of how you're going to be tracking

         11  MWBE contracts will be the same component that

         12  you'll be using to track DBE contracts?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         14  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But you still

         16  don't know exactly what that will look like?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         18  Well, I'm saying the companies, when we certify

         19  companies, we upload that up into the City's MFS.

         20  They're essentially flagged by their category of

         21  certification. When they get a contract, and when

         22  purchase orders are put into the MFS system, you

         23  could then run a report to pick up the companies

         24  that are flagged and certified.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So is that
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          2  going to be like a check? You know, you have ten

          3  contracts out there, you know, I micromange. I enjoy

          4  it, because I don't like anything falling through

          5  the cracks, so I need to understand this as to how

          6  it's going to go through the system.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          8  Mm-hmm.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Because it's

         10  unclear. It is a challenging task, and now we're

         11  throwing on another layer. And, so, I don't want the

         12  two to get mixed.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         14  Right. Well, this additional layer is not as

         15  difficult. As I say, it is just the DBE category, as

         16  opposed to what I was saying about how Local Law 129

         17  has us tracking all the M categories individually

         18  now, so we don't think this addition will be --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So there won't

         20  be any room for mistakes to count DBE as an MWBE and

         21  vice versa?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         23  No. They'll be certified in either one or the other,

         24  whatever their certification is.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And the
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          2  certification will be perhaps an astrix or a

          3  checkmark or --

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: It's

          5  actually very simple now that we've worked it all

          6  out. Just as an MWBE will be tracking by the

          7  different ethnicities and gender, so for simplicity

          8  sake, let's say we'll have a red flag for African

          9  Americans, a blue flag for Hispanic Americans, a

         10  yellow flag for women, and then we can have a green

         11  flag for DBEs. So, you would never be able to

         12  confuse one for the other.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Fantastic.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: It will

         15  all be marked.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Fantastic.

         17                 Thank you very much. I appreciate

         18  that. And I look forward to just working with you

         19  hand-in-hand.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you,

         21  Council Member.

         22                 We've been joined by a number of

         23  colleagues, Council Member David Yassky of Brooklyn

         24  is here, and Council Member John Liu, a member of

         25  the Committee has joined us.
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          2                 Council Member Letitia James, do you

          3  have a comment at this time?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mr. Schwartz,

          5  it's wonderful to see you again. The last time we

          6  had a discussion with the Commissioner, we discussed

          7  with him the absence of people of color in positions

          8  of high-level positions in the agency. It's

          9  wonderful to see Mr. Blackman. It's wonderful to see

         10  that you've hired him. And I hope that you would

         11  again hire some additional people of color in

         12  high-level positions within the agency.

         13                 Having said that, let me talk a

         14  little bit about the 8-A program, the federal

         15  program.

         16                 Based upon your testimony they do a

         17  pronged test approach, or two-prong approach to

         18  certification. One of the things that they look at

         19  is one's net worth, and one's net worth is less than

         20  25 -- $250,000, that's considered -- business

         21  owner's personal net worth is less than $250,000 is

         22  a showing of economic disadvantage, which is

         23  relatively high.

         24                 I also know that, I'm thinking in my

         25  mind about Medicaid fraud, and how often times in
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          2  order to be eligible for Medicaid, people spend

          3  down, they take their personal net and they transfer

          4  it, and, so, and in order to determine one's

          5  eligibility for Medicaid, one has to look at their

          6  personal net worth.

          7                 And, so, the question is will you

          8  look at the spending down of assets, the

          9  transferring of assets over a period of time, as

         10  they do in the Department of Health?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         12  Well, you're right. The federal program,

         13  Councilwoman, does have a two-year look back

         14  prevention.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ: I

         17  don't know how many business owners are transferring

         18  assets. I know it is a problem in Medicaid,

         19  certainly I don't know the extent of the problem at

         20  the federal level of people doing that to get to the

         21  AA program, but we are aware of the look-back

         22  provisions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And do you have

         24  an idea, perhaps it's too early, to set the amount

         25  of one's personal net worth, for purposes of
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          2  determination?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          4  Well, we were looking at the federal standards at

          5  the moment of the 250, below 250 in order to get

          6  entry of the program, and the federal level is 750

          7  where you would be out of the program at 750,000 net

          8  worth.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ: I

         11  know that Council Member Stewart raised a question

         12  about those numbers, and we're willing to hear

         13  testimony on alternative figures, or look at some of

         14  the data in how New York does vary from the rest of

         15  the country, and that perhaps an adjustment from

         16  those figures is warranted.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Social

         18  disadvantage. Will you also look at where the

         19  business is located?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         21  It's really an individual test for the owner of the

         22  business to be putting in, so if there's some

         23  relevance to that or it can be shown as relevant,

         24  you know, I think these are individualized cases.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          3  So, we would be willing to look at evidence that was

          4  presented.

          5                 But I think just strictly that

          6  anybody from the particular area would not be

          7  sufficient.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: No. But I would

          9  think that you would consider it as a factor where

         10  the business is located, if, in fact, it's in a

         11  quote/unquote disadvantaged community. That should

         12  be a factor, I would think.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         14  Again, I'm not sure how that would -- that would

         15  kind of be across the board for any business that

         16  would be there.

         17                 I think as we were laying out in the

         18  individualized test, you're going to have to make

         19  the causative factor, a person would be under the

         20  burden of showing that relationship with their own

         21  status.

         22                 Because, again, we do have programs

         23  for economically disadvantaged areas, the Empire

         24  Zone program, which specifically addressed that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I, too,
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          2  share the sentiments of Council Member Reyna about

          3  fraud. You know, the biggest, the one group that has

          4  benefitted most from affirmative action have been

          5  particularly white women, and so I'm very much

          6  concerned about fraud and individuals serving as

          7  fronts for organizations, which are worthy of this

          8  -- which are worthy of certification and have been

          9  denied for whatever reason.

         10                 I think that's about it for now. Oh,

         11  reciprocity. Certification will be -- you'll have

         12  reciprocity with other City agencies, State

         13  agencies, public authorities? How does that work?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         15  Right now we have ongoing agreements with the Port

         16  Authority, with the Women's Presidents Executive

         17  Organization. Or Kerri probably knows the full list,

         18  but we have really taken the first step to expedite

         19  certification of companies that they have certified.

         20                 We want to take that a lot further.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ: I

         23  think it's in the interest of all the entities in

         24  the region to get some kind of --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes, a seamless
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          2  type of system.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          4  Something we definitely want to work towards.

          5                 We've met also with the Lower

          6  Manhattan Coordinated Command Center. They're

          7  bringing together agencies as well and providing

          8  another forum for discussions of that type.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: The list of

         10  agencies?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: We have

         12  certification partnerships with all of the regional

         13  agencies, so it's School Construction Authority,

         14  Empire State Development Corporation, which is the

         15  State. New York, New Jersey and Minority Supplier

         16  Development Council, the Port Authority and the

         17  Women's Presidents Educational Organizations.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Does your

         19  agency have a bonding program at all? Are you

         20  looking at a bonding program?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JEW: As part

         22  of our capacity-building program, we are looking

         23  into different bonding initiatives that we can

         24  possibly offer to the community.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I would like to
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          2  work with you with regards to a bonding initiative.

          3  It's something I've been drafting and looking at, a

          4  bonding initiative as well as a revolving loan fund;

          5  is that something that you're looking at as well?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          7  We would take a look at it. We're working with the

          8  Mayor's Office of Contracts, too. Right now bonding

          9  is not required for contracts. It's up to 250,000,

         10  and we're looking into increasing that ceiling as

         11  well.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you,

         15  Council member.

         16                 Council Member David Yassky.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, thank

         18  you very much, Chair Clarke. I appreciate it. I am

         19  no longer a member of this Committee, I miss it.

         20                 And I just wanted to come today,

         21  first of all, of course, to welcome everyone, in

         22  particular Larry Stout Blackman, as the new

         23  representative of the Department of Small Business

         24  Services. It's a pleasure to see you.

         25                 I just wanted to I guess restate my,
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          2  you know, very strong support for Local Law 129, and

          3  for making sure that that proceeds, the

          4  implementation of that proceeds, as you know,

          5  speedily and effectively as possible.

          6                 I missed your initial testimony, but

          7  I've heard that it sounds like we're on a good

          8  track, so I just wanted to restate that and welcome

          9  you here.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         12  Thank you. And as I say, we are working really to

         13  implement this. We would appreciate the support of

         14  all the Council members in terms of reaching out to

         15  get certifications. If there is any way we can help

         16  you with any particular groups that you want to

         17  reach out to, we stand ready to do that at any time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you,

         19  Council member.

         20                 Commissioner, Deputy Commissioner

         21  Schwartz, I have two questions. And you may have

         22  touched upon it in your testimony, but I was

         23  wondering if you could sort of distill it for us,

         24  and that is, what are some of the initiatives that

         25  SBS intends to undertake to implement the DBE
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          2  program, and will they be any different from your

          3  initiative with respect to MWBE?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          5  Well, a great deal of it is education, and that's

          6  what I'm getting at when we talk about implementing

          7  Local Law 129.

          8                 On the one hand it's been meeting

          9  with all the agencies, that they have to understand

         10  there is a new element in their procurement process,

         11  there is going to have to be some new language in

         12  the RFPs that they put out, in the contracts that

         13  they do, and working more closely with the prime

         14  contractors they select.

         15                 On the other side, it's been, again,

         16  reaching out to the community of businesses to

         17  increase certification, and to bring them into

         18  identifying their needs in terms of capacity

         19  building and how to do business with the City.

         20                 And DBE will be, in that sense it

         21  will be an additional layer for agencies to get

         22  familiar with, and it will go through a similar

         23  process.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Now, the MWBE

         25  program I believe is supposed to commence in April.
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          2  Next week, right? Right. Just in terms of ramping up

          3  for its implementation, the wording, all of those

          4  things, have those conversations already begun?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ: I

          6  was going to say, we're already underway -- I mean,

          7  really it goes back to before the bill passed.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         10  As you know, we had begun increasing our staff,

         11  doing all of the things I'm discussing, in terms of

         12  assisting companies in working with agencies and

         13  when we got the legislation, at least it became very

         14  clear what the goal numbers are, and to bring that

         15  around.

         16                 We're working, there will be a set of

         17  implementing rules that will be going out, that the

         18  Law Department is reviewing that. We're looking to

         19  the Law Department on contract language.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Can we get a copy

         21  of those implementing rules, as well? Because we've

         22  had some concerns raised around again I guess

         23  collaboration, and making sure that the rules don't

         24  in some way, unbeknownst to folks, have an

         25  unintended consequences, as a result of, you know, I
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          2  guess practical applications of it.

          3                 So, if we could have a copy of that?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          5  Yes, agreed. And one of the things that was

          6  different than, of course, the last program, which

          7  was all rule based, which was that a lot of the

          8  program elements now are in Local Law 129. I mean,

          9  it's much more comprehensive, as you know,

         10  legislation, the approach taken here, so really the

         11  rules can go no further than the law goes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And then the next

         13  question would be, have we already begun having some

         14  conversations with those same agency heads around

         15  the fact that a DBE program may be coming down the

         16  pike, so that, you know, it can become I guess

         17  somewhat tedious in being able to craft the language

         18  in the RFPs and what have you, that makes that

         19  distinction, and that they have I guess taken

         20  ownership of it because you don't want, you know,

         21  there to be any inconsistencies across the board or

         22  in individuals, like, why do I have to go through

         23  this, blah-blah-blah-blah-blah, you know, and the

         24  result of that kind of mess up stuff.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:
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          2  Well, I think there's an awareness of the DBE. I

          3  think that we're fortunate that we've had a few

          4  months of lead time to work with them on MWBE, and

          5  certainly we didn't want to give them details of a

          6  program until it's finalized, so it reduced the

          7  confusion.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Just an awareness

          9  that it may be coming down.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         11  Well, yes, as it was in the Executive Order that

         12  first raised it, so they've been aware of it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Then, finally,

         14  what are the resources that SBS will apply to the

         15  implementation, and how do those relate to the MWBE?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ: I

         17  think I was outlining in the testimony that we have,

         18  the division by the new fiscal year will have

         19  approximately 30 positions that are working

         20  continuously and full-time on the MWBE program. And

         21  I will say they also rely on other resources from

         22  the agency, our Legal Division, the Executive

         23  Division, you know, the Commissioner is out

         24  everywhere in the City and always discussing MWBE.

         25  Larry Scott Blackman also has a role through our
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          2  Intergovernmental Office, promoting certification

          3  and the program. So, we're bringing a lot of

          4  resources to bear. We are looking to agencies to a

          5  point, MWBE liaisons also, and they have, in some

          6  cases, large procurement staffs too that will be

          7  working on the program.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: So are they going

          9  to be multitasking? In other words, are they going

         10  to be just as competent in the implementation of the

         11  DBE, as they are with the MWBE? Or will there be

         12  sort of a separation? In other words, there will be

         13  some personnel dedicated solely to DBE and others

         14  solely to MWBE.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ: I

         16  don't think we will set it up that way. I think a

         17  little of it does depend on what volume of DBE

         18  certification is and we've already discussed with

         19  OMB the potential, depending on that volume, as to

         20  whether we could handle it with existing resources.

         21  That remains to be seen.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay. Any other

         23  questions for my colleagues? Council Member Reyna?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Commissioner

         25  Schwartz, I just wanted to ask, the agencies,
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          2  Citywide agencies, has each department received or

          3  identified a particular individual who will be

          4  dealing with MWBEs? And am I to assume that the same

          5  person will be dealing with DBE as the contact to

          6  both programs?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          8  We'll work with, when this law comes to pass, we

          9  will work with them. If they want to structure it

         10  with somebody specifically on DBE.

         11                 Now, some agencies have that because

         12  they do a lot of federal contracting, DEP, DOT are

         13  already under the federal DBE program, so we're

         14  finding that there are resource people in some of

         15  the agencies on DBE. So, they not be one model for

         16  every agency on this.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It would be

         18  helpful to me, I think as a member of the Council,

         19  and in certifying, helping to certify businesses,

         20  and informing businesses of what opportunities there

         21  are to be able to know that there is a particular

         22  individual at each agency, and that includes all

         23  agencies across the board, because, you know, goods

         24  and services can range from many different levels,

         25  and it's always important to understand who will
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          2  give you the answers, and not be ambiguous about the

          3  information. And so if you are able to communicate

          4  to Commissioner Walsh that a list per agency of

          5  contact persons, because I know that during

          6  preliminary budget hearings we've been asking every

          7  department who is going to be in charge of your

          8  MWBE. And much to our surprise, pleasant surprise,

          9  people have been answering and giving us names. And

         10  so I think now we need to formalize a list that will

         11  be accessible to us as a body so that we can help

         12  enforce this.

         13                 In addition to that, I want to ensure

         14  that every agency is listed, including HPD, you

         15  know, School Construction Authority, you know,

         16  Department of Transportation, whomever it is, just

         17  all across.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         19  Yes, I appreciate that you are asking the agencies

         20  as well. I think that really does serve to reinforce

         21  the same message that we've been giving, and when

         22  they do file utilization plans, they will be

         23  identifying somebody.

         24                 But as I said, a lot of agencies,

         25  they have a number of people working on this.
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          2                 I know Kerri, who has been

          3  coordinating the meetings with the agencies, tells a

          4  story of one agency that wanted to bring 60 people

          5  to the meeting in terms of the procurement staff.

          6  So, there's a lot of interest in, you know, they're

          7  structured in different ways, and we want to be able

          8  to send our companies, depending on what they sell,

          9  goods and services to the right -- not only to say

         10  go to the procurement at DEP, but who at DEP to go

         11  to.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Absolutely.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: First Deputy

         15  Commissioner, I think one of the concerns that I've

         16  been hearing is that you don't want to I guess mix

         17  apples and oranges and there's a concern that the

         18  MWBE had the appropriate resources for its

         19  implementation and that likewise, DBE have the

         20  appropriate resources and personnel to make sure

         21  that its implementation is effective.

         22                 Have there been given any

         23  consideration to that? Because certainly when we

         24  conceived of the MWBE part of our whole momentum, it

         25  was not only the disparity study, but making sure
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          2  that in budget we allocated funding for staffing,

          3  right?

          4                 So, the next question is, has there

          5  been any consideration for that? Do you know whether

          6  the Commissioner will be at, I heard you say

          7  something about OMB and anticipation, but should we

          8  not also at the Council level be anticipating

          9  dedicating a funding stream to make sure that

         10  there's the appropriate personnel to deal with the

         11  DBE. The whole idea, or concern, I'm sorry, is that

         12  we're not taking from the MWBE program to create the

         13  DBE program.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         15  Understood. And when we approached OMB about our new

         16  needs, it included the understanding that there was

         17  going to be a DBE program, and that we could address

         18  those concerns.

         19                 And we appreciate, as you point out,

         20  that the Council has supported some additional

         21  staffing at the agency. We appreciate that support

         22  and have relied on it in building up our

         23  organization.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you very

         25  much, Commissioner. Thank you, all, for your
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          2  testimony here today.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          4  You're very welcome. Thank you for your support as

          5  well.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Due to the large

          7  volume of folks who want to testify here today, we

          8  are going to bring panels up to give testimony.

          9  Everyone will be given two minutes for their

         10  testimony, and we will then take questions from

         11  there.

         12                 So, our first panel would be Mr. Mark

         13  O'Luch from Spectrum Personal Communications, Jose

         14  Leon, St. Marks NPC, and Joseph K. Robles, the

         15  Knights Collision Experts Incorporated.

         16                 Before you all proceed, just state

         17  your name and your affiliation for the record. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 The Sergeant, just assist these

         20  gentlemen with the microphones.

         21                 I don't think they're on. There's

         22  usually a light that comes on. There you go.

         23                 MR. O'LUCH: Okay, thank you. Mark

         24  O'Luch, Spectrum Personal Communications Corps.

         25                 MR. ROBLES: Joseph Robles, President

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  of Knights Collision Experts.

          3                 MR. LEON: Jose Leon, with the St.

          4  Nicholas Neighborhood Preservation Corporation.

          5                 MR. O'LUCH: Good afternoon,

          6  Councilwoman and Council members. My name is Mark

          7  O'Luch again, and I am very pleased to say that I am

          8  going to support this legislation with some

          9  provisions.

         10                 As you might know, I've been very

         11  actively involved in this legislation of recent, and

         12  I apologize I have no written remarks, but I've been

         13  extremely busy and I'm going to have to leave

         14  immediately after my comments.

         15                 What I want to say is that one of the

         16  things I think the Council should consider, and I

         17  want to clear up something before, forget about the

         18  $250,000. It's basically that a company is of social

         19  economic development on the federal side, if they

         20  have a net worth less than $750,000 excluding their

         21  home, and Mr. Schwartz didn't mention that. That's

         22  Councilman Stewart's question. It does not include

         23  your home. And if you do have equity in the

         24  business, that goes towards your net work, depending

         25  on what type of corporation, or whether you're
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          2  incorporated or not, or what the case may be.

          3                 The other thing I want to say is that

          4  one of the things I want to mention for provisions

          5  that is in addition to supporting legislation is

          6  that you have to make sure that if you do use the

          7  federal provisions for DBE, that if you don't mirror

          8  them exactly, what you may have is, because on the

          9  DBE side more or less refers to aviation, mass

         10  transit, and transportation, such as the City's DOT

         11  has a DBE program, the MTA has a DBE program, the

         12  Port Authority has a DBE program as well.

         13                 So, one of the things is that the

         14  federal legislation -- not legislation, but laws,

         15  regulations, that is, actually refer to 49 CFR,

         16  parts 23 and 26.

         17                 If there are not, if you were

         18  certified as the DBE of the City of New York, you

         19  will not be eligible for those programs because

         20  they're strictly under the federal provisions. So, I

         21  just want to mention that, as far as the way they're

         22  done. Even though they're both race neutral, if

         23  they're not exactly as the regulation requiring 49

         24  CFR parts 23 and 26, that would be a separate DBE,

         25  which means then if you have the same nomenclature
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          2  being DBE, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise, but as

          3  far as those other agencies, they were not

          4  recognized through DBEs because of that, and I just

          5  wanted to mention that's one of the other

          6  provisions.

          7                 The other thing is, is that one of

          8  the things that I heard quite a bit was that the

          9  reason why this legislation was proposed was because

         10  of the fact that during the disparity study, some

         11  groups were left out, such as the Spanish and

         12  Asians, as well as black women.

         13                 This is race neutral, so, therefore,

         14  the provisions would actually apply to anyone that's

         15  is declaring economically disadvantaged. So I just

         16  also want to point that out, because you cannot do

         17  that. That's exactly what it is. It's based on race

         18  neutral.

         19                 The other thing is that the goal that

         20  was set up at seven percent, I think the other thing

         21  is that should be looked at because it seems as if I

         22  could not get a very clear understanding why it was

         23  seven percent as opposed to five percent or ten

         24  percent, what the case may be, but I am concerned

         25  again, is that one of the things, even supporting
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          2  the legislation itself, is that we have to make sure

          3  that this has caused a lot of angst in the minority

          4  and women business community about we have

          5  implemented the MWBE program, already we got another

          6  goal to be looking at, is that to make sure that we

          7  keep these things separate. And the funding for

          8  this, one of the things that I did was when I talked

          9  to Robert Jackson -- Robert Newman, as well as with

         10  Danny Serrano, was that looking at other cities, and

         11  one of the cities that does have a program like this

         12  one is the City of Houston, Texas. And some of the

         13  other cities that I looked at during my research is

         14  that I found that they have monthly certification

         15  clinics in their offices at the City government

         16  where these businesses can go on a monthly basis.

         17  They are regularly scheduled for that. It's not

         18  going out, you know, asking the organizations to do

         19  this if they didn't have no funding to do this kind

         20  of thing. They have monthly certification clinics,

         21  and I would definitely say that it would be a good

         22  thing for DBS, given the 30 people that they have,

         23  that someone can give certification clinics on a

         24  monthly basis that they scheduled and that this

         25  information is disseminated.
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          2                 The other thing is that these other

          3  cities have is, they have MWDBE coordinators in each

          4  agency. So, therefore, if you're going to HPD, or

          5  you're going to, whatever department you're going

          6  to, agency you're going to, there's an MWDBE

          7  coordinator that they have within each agency that

          8  helps you navigate that particular agency. So,

          9  that's another thing to look up.

         10                 And lastly, what I want to say is

         11  that Councilwoman Reyna, you embraced a very good

         12  question, and that is, that you posed earlier is,

         13  that one of the things, as you might well know, is

         14  that the MWBE legislation is coming out. The

         15  rule-making has been done. We have not seen that.

         16  So, as a consultant of someone who works in this

         17  industry, we've been doing it since 1988, we can be

         18  very helpful in this information.

         19                 As you might have heard before, he

         20  was asked about the $750,000, he couldn't answer the

         21  question about the net worth, about excluding your

         22  home, because he didn't know that this is something

         23  we know on a day-to-day basis. And certainly, if we

         24  could be called upon to help craft this rule-making

         25  process and make sure that those that both
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          2  legislation were designed to help, that they truly

          3  are. And I'm very happy about a disadvantaged

          4  program, because of the fact there are disadvantaged

          5  businesses.

          6                 I guess my last question is that I do

          7  have is whether or not a person is qualified or

          8  certified as an M or a WBE, whether or not that

          9  person can also be certified as a DBE, and I have

         10  not had the pleasure of having that question

         11  answered.

         12                 But, again, anything I can do to

         13  further this process, by all means, do count me in.

         14  It's something very close and very dear to me

         15  personally.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you very

         18  much, Mr. O'Luch. We're going to ask Mr. Joe Robles,

         19  Knights Collision Experts, to make his testimony at

         20  this time.

         21                 And, Mark, just to answer your

         22  question, there is nothing in the legislation that

         23  currently precludes someone from being certified as

         24  both an MWBE and a WBE.

         25                 MR. ROBLES: Good afternoon. My name
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          2  is Joe Robles. I'm the owner and president of

          3  Knights Collision Experts, located on 120 Union

          4  Avenue in Williamsburg Brooklyn. I am a third

          5  generation owner/operator of an auto repair and

          6  towing company that services the five boroughs of

          7  the City of New York.

          8                 We employ approximately 50

          9  individuals on a full- and part-time basis. I

         10  applied to be certified as an MWBE firm in order to

         11  grow our company by soliciting procurement

         12  opportunities with Fortune 500 companies and

         13  governmental agencies.

         14                 This year we just received the MWBE

         15  certification, through the New York City's

         16  Department of Small Business Services.

         17                 In our future solicitations to

         18  companies and agencies, we are hoping that the MWBE

         19  certification will level the playing field in the

         20  business climate that is not always receptive to the

         21  abilities of well-run minority owned businesses.

         22                 Intro. 180-A broadens the scope of

         23  the assistance to include social and economic

         24  disadvantaged businesses.

         25                 Those businesses also need the
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          2  assistance of legislation, in order to effectively

          3  compete in the marketplace that is dominated by

          4  companies without such disadvantages.

          5                 The DBE program will make available

          6  the American dream to firms that without such

          7  assistance cannot effectively compete.

          8                 The City of New York needs to be

          9  business friendly to companies that do business in

         10  New York City. This includes promoting programs that

         11  ensure opportunities to all firms.

         12                 Disadvantaged businesses enterprises

         13  need assistance in competing for business with

         14  municipalities and large corporations.

         15                 These are firms that usually employ

         16  economically disadvantaged business persons also.

         17                 The certification and designation as

         18  DBE will not only affect the principals of the

         19  companies, but their employees also.

         20                 We need to help disadvantaged firms

         21  help themselves grow and prosper and flourish in the

         22  New York City climate. Without such assistance, many

         23  will never see their dream come true.

         24                 In closing, I ask for your support of

         25  Intro. 180-A, so we can proudly promote business
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          2  opportunities to all companies that do business in

          3  the City of New York.

          4                 I would just like to add one thing to

          5  my testimony. I'm sitting and listening to the

          6  dialogue, something I didn't put in here was this

          7  was my third attempt to become certified. The first

          8  two attempts were failed I think primarily because I

          9  want about it on my own.

         10                 On the third attempt we had the

         11  assistance of St. Nicholas NPC, through the New York

         12  State EAP program, and they basically consisted us

         13  in compiling all the information and the proof that

         14  was in it.

         15                 It's quite lengthy and for good

         16  reason, because you can see in compiling it that it

         17  is to try and avoid fraud, and so the true companies

         18  that need this get this. I really feel that

         19  something has to be built in to have the firms have

         20  somebody walk them through the process, because

         21  although once we submitted it to SBS, it did get

         22  turned around very quickly, which was very

         23  surprising, and is, you know, a good thing. But to

         24  compile the amount of information and how extensive

         25  it is, when you have someone who has done it before,
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          2  and to basically walk you through the process, it's

          3  the difference, it makes a difference of getting a

          4  certification and not getting it.

          5                 Someone might try two times, and then

          6  was able to do it with assistance, I know the

          7  importance of that. That's all.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you very

          9  much for your testimony. I just had a question for

         10  you.

         11                 One day my car broke down on the FDR

         12  Drive, and I saw all of these tow trucks just blow

         13  by me, and I was like, wow, nobody is going to help

         14  me, but they said to me, "you've got to wait for

         15  Knights to get here." And Knights was there --

         16                 MR. ROBLES: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: On the case, and

         18  helped me out.

         19                 MR. ROBLES: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: And I felt safe

         21  and secure.

         22                 MR. ROBLES: Very good.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: So, I know of

         24  your work. I know of the work of your company, and

         25  I'm glad to know that you'll be able to take
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          2  advantage of this.

          3                 MR. ROBLES: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you.

          5                 MR. LEON: Good afternoon. My name is

          6  Jose Leon again. I'm with St. Nicholas Neighborhood

          7  Preservation Corporation. I apologize I don't have

          8  any written testimony, but my testimony is very

          9  brief.

         10                 We, on behalf of St. Nicholas,

         11  support Intro. No. 180-A. We believe it's a good

         12  step. It's in the right direction. I agree

         13  completely with our colleague, the first person, Mr.

         14  O'Luch, who touched upon some great points, but what

         15  I want to do is add a few more points to his

         16  testimony as well.

         17                 What's also desperately needed is

         18  good marketing to the different communities, but

         19  also in different languages. That's often lacking.

         20                 If the groups we want to target did

         21  not receive the information in their common

         22  language, it's often going to get overlooked. It's

         23  never going to be effective.

         24                 So, I would strongly suggest that the

         25  materials be in the different languages and the
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          2  common languages that we're targeting in the

          3  community.

          4                 Secondly, I also encourage that SBS

          5  and any other agency work with local not-for-profit

          6  organizations who have a better pulse on what's

          7  happening in the area who have a better

          8  understanding of the different visitors in their

          9  respective communities.

         10                 Not that I'm pitching St. Nicks, but

         11  I think that a lot of organizations in New York

         12  City, not-for-profits do excellent work and are very

         13  connected to the different businesses and their

         14  environment. But without the adequate support and

         15  funding, many of these not-for-profits are not able

         16  to get the word out, and I believe with SBS,

         17  partnership with SBS, I believe that these

         18  not-for-profits will be able to do a much better

         19  job.

         20                 And in closing, again, I want to

         21  support, offer our support for this introduction,

         22  and if you have any questions, just to take a step

         23  backwards, St. Nicholas has been in the business of

         24  helping entrepreneurs and small businesses develop

         25  and grow, and tap into the many different incentive
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          2  programs. We were instrumental in helping Mr. Joe

          3  Robles from Knights Collision be able to secure the

          4  MWBE certification. We're working on another

          5  applicant and we may have two more down in the

          6  pipeline. But the MBA is very, very difficult. Often

          7  many small businesses, entrepreneurs, shy away

          8  because of the extensive paperwork that's required.

          9  If there's any opportunity to look at the extensive

         10  paperwork, maybe streamline it, I commend SBS and

         11  the Port Authority and the School Construction

         12  Authority for using the same form, the same

         13  platform. It's a big step in the right direction.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you. My

         16  question is, your organization assists businesses

         17  with certification, do you have trained personnel on

         18  your staff, or a trained person on your staff that

         19  understands the certification process or was it just

         20  a matter of being a liaison between SBS and the

         21  business owner?

         22                 MR. LEON: It was a little bit of

         23  both. It first started out as being a liaison, but

         24  once it became more involved, we actually sat down

         25  and took apart the application and figured out what
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          2  was required and then contacted the City agency, the

          3  contact person, to figure out if the information we

          4  were going to submit is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Okay. Well, I

          6  want to thank both of you very much for your

          7  testimony here today. It's been very helpful. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 MR. LEON: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: We'd like to call

         11  C.V. Shashikumar, of C.V. Associates, Lincoln T.

         12  Satkunarajait. Long name. Many syllables. From

         13  Paragon Engineering P.C., and Walter Sim of Simco

         14  Engineering.

         15                 And please just state your name and

         16  affiliation for the record.

         17                 MR. SATKUNARAJAIT: Good afternoon.

         18  Lincoln Satkunarajait from Paragon Engineering, P.C.

         19                 Honorable members of the Council,

         20  thank you for this opportunity to present this

         21  testimony.

         22                 Actually, as an engineering with

         23  engineering background, we looked at the two charts

         24  which are in front of you to express the grief and

         25  pain among the Asian Business communities,
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          2  engineers, architect, professional, business owners,

          3  as somewhat with whole purpose and intention, even

          4  though Law 129 was introduced to serve benefit to

          5  all communities, somehow it turned out to us to be

          6  an approach where when one community works so hard

          7  through the years to build up their infrastructural

          8  businesses, knowledge, services, to the society,

          9  suddenly found ourself because certain sector of our

         10  community is not doing well, so that the approach

         11  selected in the 1 to 9 allows us more opportunities

         12  further, and until the next five years we are in

         13  deep pain, how to obtain opportunities to

         14  participate in future contracts.

         15                 So, the second sheet which I've

         16  displayed in front of you shows the bridging the gap

         17  with inclusive approach. When we looked at the

         18  over-utilization and under-utilization, the gap,

         19  instead of looking at the way to bring the community

         20  to suffering to the level that the community, they

         21  have already worked so hard, the approach adopted in

         22  one through nine, and especially DBE 180 Intro

         23  indicate only certain community, distinct names,

         24  Hispanics and Blacks with certain goals, where

         25  Asians were completely excluded there.

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 So, we would like your help somehow

          3  to adopt an inclusive approach and to address other

          4  grievances. It's taken five more years to do the

          5  next disparity study. What could they do all of us,

          6  the engineers, what do you do until such time? And

          7  all minority businesses, we employ older minorities,

          8  including blacks, Hispanics and everybody else.

          9  Therefore, other request here is to help us to

         10  alleviate our pain and the impact caused to our

         11  society. Thousands of business men are not here.

         12                 They are very heartbreaking people.

         13  Myself, it's 20 years experience and international

         14  engineering, I lived in England, all over the world,

         15  I came here about five years ago to exclusively

         16  depart my knowledge and help to build the

         17  infrastructure for traffic and transportation in New

         18  York City (sic). So, I'm a bit disappointed that,

         19  you know, we're not doing well. I could only

         20  finalize by saying this analogy, there are two ways

         21  you can feel perception-wise, I'm going up in life.

         22  One way is to put somebody down, and think that I'm

         23  going up. Other ways to take other persons with you

         24  and grow and feel that all of us are going together.

         25                 So, that's my short testimony.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you very

          3  much for your testimony.

          4                 MR. SHASHIKUMAR: My name is C.V.

          5  Shashikumar. I'm the President of C.V. Associates.

          6                 I started my contracting firm in

          7  1995, and we are certified by the federal

          8  government, and we are a certified DBE in the

          9  streets of New York, New Jersey, Connecticut,

         10  Pennsylvania and Texas. And I'm an Asian Indian.

         11                 One of my first aspects is, of

         12  course, the very first gentleman who gave the

         13  testimony here, he made a distinction that DBE by

         14  the New York City, and the DBE by the federal

         15  program, should be a single program. It should be a

         16  single program rather than a separate one.

         17                 If it is made as a single program,

         18  all those others certified as DBE are certified by

         19  the federal government, can be easily transferred

         20  and they can be brought into the New York City

         21  programs actually.

         22                 And as I understand, in the 2000

         23  census, 82 percent of the population in New York

         24  City constitutes minority and women, and if you look

         25  back from 1999, October, before 1999 October, there
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          2  was a prohibition by the New York City, I believe it

          3  is by the Mayor David Dinkins, that there was a 14

          4  percent set aside for personal services, and 23

          5  percent set aside for the construction contracts.

          6                 And once the program was elapsed in

          7  October 1999, hardly any of the minorities,

          8  including the Asian, as you mentioned, went to the

          9  City and registered themselves as minorities.

         10                 Now the recent study that was

         11  conducted for the City, just went and looked at the

         12  docket that they have, most of the minorities were

         13  not even aware that they were making a study and

         14  they need to register with the City.

         15                 So, basically the disparity study

         16  that they have conducted has some negative things,

         17  there are certain lapses in the disparity study.

         18                 And if we look at only one number I

         19  want to look at with the City Council, particularly

         20  I'm talking about the personal services issues, if

         21  we look at the total dollar value of contracts

         22  offered after 1999 October, and as of today, almost

         23  90 percent of the dollar value goes to the 18

         24  percent of the population of the New York City.

         25                 To put it in other words, it is like
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          2  the white men, those companies which are more than

          3  51 percent of white men, they take away 90 percent

          4  of the dollar value of the contracts. Of course this

          5  number have to be verified, but I am in business for

          6  12 years, I regularly notice it. From '99 as of

          7  today, if you look, hardly there are any contracts

          8  in personal services to minorities and women

          9  actually.

         10                 And, again, coming back, even I,

         11  myself, as an Asian Indian and being a business

         12  owner, hardly got any contract. I am in business for

         13  12 years, I work in the New York City, but

         14  everything is through the New York State program,

         15  but when they approach the New York City for the

         16  work, I didn't get any work, though I work in the

         17  City through other agencies and other State

         18  programs.

         19                 So, when it comes to the listing that

         20  has been made here, of course, as the first

         21  gentleman mentioned, it looks like the list is

         22  hierarchy of victimization. Who were the first in

         23  this society 200 years ago? Who was 100 years ago?

         24  Black Americans, Hispanic Americans, white women,

         25  but it does exclude the Asians.
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          2                 I, myself, as I understand, for the

          3  last 12 years, I can document it very clearly that I

          4  have been discriminated, and I could not get

          5  opportunity in New York City. And here one cannot

          6  bring in the hierarchy of victimization.

          7                 So, when you are making a race

          8  neutral and gender neutral, here still you have a

          9  classification of Black Americans, Hispanic

         10  Americans, white Americans. What about my wife? She

         11  has a business. She is an Asian woman. How do we say

         12  that she is better than white women?

         13                 And if you look back at one more

         14  number, which I looked at demographics and the

         15  numbers, I looked at statistics, again, if you look

         16  at 35 percent of the population of New York City, it

         17  is made out of white population. Almost 17 and a

         18  half percent constitute white women, and if you look

         19  at the set aside number that has been given here, it

         20  looks like 19 percent set goal, the population is 17

         21  and a half percent. This disparity study, actually

         22  they have more percentage set aside than the

         23  population in New York City, if you just look at the

         24  New York City population actually.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Mr. C.V., I want

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  to ask if you would just sort of sum up.

          3                 MR. SHASHIKUMAR: Yes. No, this one is

          4  the Council has to be inclusive rather than the DVC

          5  (phonetic), right? And I don't know my numbers

          6  correctly, maybe a million Asian communities there

          7  in the City, and they should be included, and each

          8  and every class, on the hierarchy of victimization.

          9                 MR. SATKUNARAJAIT: Just one final,

         10  Council members, what we would like from your side

         11  is to, this disparity report, it's a question in

         12  everyone's mind. We are not questioning the

         13  credibility of the report of the credibility of the

         14  firm that has done the report. We would like if

         15  that's been a very powerful tool to make this

         16  decision in the goal-setting, of an Asian business

         17  community, we would like to have access to

         18  transparency of those data, so if they are correct,

         19  then all of us -- I think there is two bills, the

         20  Law 129 and 180, definitely good intention, all of

         21  you are trying, but all we are saying is all of us

         22  get together and have to benefit in the process, one

         23  should not be left out. This is our final comments.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you both
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          2  very much, and we will certainly make sure that all

          3  of the data that we had available will be made

          4  available to you as well.

          5                 MR. SATKUNARAJAIT: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you.

          7                 Our next panel, I'd like to call

          8  Sandra Wilkin of the Women Builders Council, Vice

          9  President; Walter McCaffrey of the women Builders

         10  Council, and Jose Calleron of the Hispanic

         11  Federation.

         12                 MR. McCAFFREY: Thank you, Madam

         13  Chair. Having been a member of this body, I have

         14  looked at this issue with more than some minor

         15  interest, having been the Council member who funded

         16  the disparity study that has served as the basis for

         17  the legislation, I was joined in this by my

         18  colleague Una Clarke, and at 2:00 in the morning, we

         19  were the only ones who ended up, based upon the

         20  cajoling, the pleading, the annoyance of Ms. Wilkin,

         21  to demand that we end up putting into the budget

         22  money for the disparity study.

         23                 We are mindful of the fact that

         24  Crosin had placed a major burden, Adaranda

         25  (phonetic) placed a major burden on us, and I can
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          2  only tell you that the pleasant difference is

          3  hearing an administration today that is much more

          4  interested in being cooperative, than the

          5  predecessor administration, who is downright

          6  hostile, that did everything it could to undermine

          7  the presence of women and minority businesses, in

          8  terms of the City economy. So, much has moved

          9  forward.

         10                 Now, unfortunately, the quality of

         11  the work of the disparity study was not the best. We

         12  all have to admit that. We have to be very candid.

         13  There is much there, having read over it numerous

         14  times, that is mind-boggling and, quite frankly,

         15  with little explanation.

         16                 But it serves as the basis for 129.

         17  It is important for us to understand that it is a

         18  challenge for you as an institution to correct that.

         19  We may want to look at a number of options, whether

         20  it's now moving down the limitations of having the

         21  administration just do another disparity study for

         22  the Council to end up funding something along those

         23  lines to address the concerns. Because when you look

         24  at the conclusions there, and you've heard this from

         25  the previous speakers, they raise very, very valid
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          2  points. This defies the realities in New York City's

          3  economy.

          4                 The other item, let me just suggest

          5  to you, is while the legislation here in terms of

          6  the DBEs is a very, very important component, you

          7  should be demanding to see every bit of the

          8  regulation that the agency is going to propose

          9  before you pass a piece of legislation.

         10                 I mean, I had my predecessor in the

         11  Council tell me that he would never as Chair of the

         12  Housing and Buildings Committee pass a piece of

         13  legislation, a local law, without knowing what the

         14  regulations are, and Council Member Reyna started to

         15  ask many of those questions today, Council Member

         16  Stewart started asking those questions, and the

         17  Chairperson has certainly raised them.

         18                 For example, if we were to go with

         19  the full regulations, in terms of the federal

         20  concept, now we will be killing off, killing off

         21  women and minority business enterprises, because of

         22  the ten percent aspect in terms of a price

         23  preference.

         24                 So, what do we then do to what we

         25  have now created, in terms of the legislative policy
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          2  in the City of New York in 129? We kill it. Because

          3  quite frankly, the minority and women business

          4  enterprises will not have that price advantage.

          5                 There is in the legislation, the

          6  concept there was seven percent aspect here, in

          7  terms of the DBEs, but there is no predicate basis

          8  for that. And you cannot move forward in this type

          9  of hostile environment that's out there, and in

         10  which we have a lot of white businesses that are

         11  very hostile to this whole concept, that are going

         12  to look to challenge us down the road.

         13                 I mean, one doesn't have to look to

         14  the Neanderthals and the Republicans in Washington,

         15  D.C. to realize that that's going to happen here

         16  potentially down the road.

         17                 So, you have to have a predicate

         18  basis to be able to support that figure, which is

         19  very, very important, and we don't have any

         20  predicate basis here. The figure just appears, so

         21  there has to be some basis that is provided, in

         22  terms of the legislation.

         23                 And the other thing is, some of you,

         24  if you really looked at the federal regulations,

         25  would be horrified. Knowing that the two members
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          2  here are very, very sensitive to women's issues, you

          3  know, what happens, for example, if you're a

          4  divorced female, and you want to be able to move

          5  forward under the federal regulations, they have to

          6  get in essence permission from your former husband.

          7                 Now, are women going to remain

          8  chattel? And that's the type of system that you want

          9  to know? That is what has to be provided to you.

         10  What are they going to have by way of the federal

         11  regulations.

         12                 And in the legislation, as it

         13  currently mentions, it says this is going to be used

         14  as a model. In what regard is it going to be used as

         15  a model? In what regard is it not?

         16                 And lastly, you have to be able to

         17  undo what is now going to be a ceiling that New York

         18  City government is going to be putting in place in

         19  terms of women and minority business enterprises, $1

         20  million.

         21                 I mean, the concept in terms of

         22  growth is going to be stifled. I mean, the analysis

         23  that was never ever intended, as legislative intent

         24  to this body, and its previous form, and a policy

         25  that we want to continue I'm sure, is to say that
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          2  that's it, a million dollars, and that's all you get

          3  if you're a minority business, that's all you get if

          4  you're a woman business, that has to be addressed

          5  also.

          6                 So, there are many, many flaws that

          7  have to be addressed first.

          8                 But I compliment Council Member

          9  Reyna. Certainly, Council member, your background in

         10  terms of being so close to the community, you

         11  understand the practical impact of what these

         12  regulations mean, and so that's why I'm urging you.

         13                 See what the regulations are first,

         14  and I think this Administration will cooperate with

         15  you in terms of that, to be able to have those

         16  questions answered.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you, former

         18  Council Member McCaffrey, we appreciate that.

         19                 Ms. Wilkin.

         20                 MS. WILKIN: Good afternoon,

         21  Chairperson Clarke, and Committee members. I have

         22  just some brief points to bring to your attention

         23  pursuant to Intro. 180, now 180-A, to Local Law 129.

         24                 I want to applaud the City

         25  Administration for taking the necessary first steps
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          2  in seeking the economic benefits to this City,

          3  having Local Law 129 and the City Council, and

          4  especially Chairperson Clarke, who has, and this

          5  Committee, who has continually supported women and

          6  minority businesses.

          7                 As a Co-Founder of Women Builders

          8  Council, and the women in construction, trying to

          9  break through the concrete ceiling, there are many,

         10  many challenges.

         11                 We at WBC understand that diversity

         12  in construction industry is imperative. That is why

         13  it is important to be mindful how we amend Local Law

         14  129. It has been more than six years since the City

         15  Council has put into place the funding for a

         16  disparity study in its findings reported in January

         17  2005.

         18                 A long and somewhat sad journey, who

         19  have statistically revealed that there is

         20  discrimination and disparities in the construction

         21  industry for women, minorities, and disadvantaged

         22  businesses.

         23                 Although the disparity study needs to

         24  be reviewed and changed and changes to be made, it

         25  is what this Committee has to work with.
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          2                 In particular, it is essential that

          3  to include goals for women in the general and

          4  subcontractor categories, no doubt the disparity

          5  study and its use as a predicate to Local Law 129 is

          6  to protect us against the possibilities of

          7  challenges ahead through the Crosin and Adarand

          8  (phonetic) Supreme Court Decisions, which require a

          9  test of strict scrutiny for race-conscious programs

         10  and a burden of proof for unprotected classes, which

         11  are women.

         12                 Here are a few group points to

         13  consider. The amendment is to include disadvantaged

         14  business enterprises. Has there been a study to

         15  determine the disparity of those businesses? Where

         16  is the statistical data?

         17                 Intro. 180-A makes references to

         18  federal DBE programs. These federal guidelines have

         19  price preferences for DBEs. Will there be a price

         20  preference, price evaluation adjustments in future

         21  bidding of New York City contracts?

         22                 If so, WMBEs will not have the

         23  opportunity for those seeing price preferences, and

         24  will therefore create unfair competition for African

         25  Americans, Latinos and women, which was the reason
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          2  for Local 129 to begin with.

          3                 Intro. 180-A has been placed, the DBE

          4  in every category of contracts and given a goal of

          5  seven percent of annual agency expenditures of

          6  contracts. How was that arrived at?

          7                 Presuming and going on the same

          8  premise of DBEs in every category, then there should

          9  be the same justification of providing goals for

         10  women in every category, otherwise it would be

         11  unfair to women.

         12                 Federal guidelines have contracts

         13  that are set-asides. It is this Committee

         14  considering set-aside contracts for DBEs, which

         15  again would cripple women and minority business

         16  enterprises.

         17                 It is very laudable, and once again,

         18  Committee Chairperson, and this Committee, has come

         19  to the aid and the voice for persons, that have been

         20  discriminated within the contracting community, and

         21  to give disadvantaged businesses the opportunity to

         22  do businesses within the City of New York.

         23                 However, to introduce an amendment to

         24  Local Law 129 without doing proper predicate work

         25  may well dismantle over a decade of work and
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          2  paralyze Local 129 with unnecessary legal challenges

          3  from those who do not care about women, minority and

          4  disadvantaged businesses who help build New York. It

          5  may well give the old boys in business the upper

          6  hand.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you.

          9                 MR. CALDERON: Good afternoon. My name

         10  is Jose Calderon. I am the Vice President of the

         11  Hispanic Federation.

         12                 I will be very brief. I know that

         13  some of us haven't eaten yet, so I'll be conscious

         14  of that fact.

         15                 The federation represents 90 Latino

         16  Institutions throughout the Northeast actually.

         17  Seventy of those agencies are located here in New

         18  York City, and part of our work is to develop,

         19  promote and grow economic development specifically

         20  in the Latino community.

         21                 We appeared before you then to

         22  further those aims by expressing our support for

         23  Intro. 180-A.

         24                 This bill serves as an important

         25  means to addressing the continuing disparities faced
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          2  by our DBEs.

          3                 Recent studies on economic growth and

          4  community development suggest that DBE programs play

          5  a vital role in generating jobs, income and local

          6  revenue in impoverished communities. In fact,

          7  according to the minority business development

          8  agencies, DBE programs, when administered

          9  effectively, are stimulating opportunities that

         10  foster job creation, economic revitalization and

         11  community empowerment.

         12                 As Council Member Diana Reyna stated

         13  earlier, small businesses are an essential part of

         14  the fabric that sustain the City, and so it is

         15  critical that you're looking at this, and we commend

         16  you for doing so.

         17                 Unfortunately many Hispanic, MWBEs

         18  and DBEs have been limited in expanding these

         19  opportunities in their communities because they lack

         20  the access and the know-how to navigate the City's

         21  procurement process, and obviously, consequently

         22  they do not obtain their fair share of City

         23  contracts.

         24                 In fact, research on Minority

         25  Business Enterprises in New York City indicates a
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          2  Hispanic, minority, women and disadvantaged business

          3  owners have been significantly underutilized by the

          4  City, particularly in industries such as

          5  construction, architecture, engineering,

          6  professional services, standard services and goods.

          7                 I have a whole bunch of data here,

          8  which you know also. I'm not going to get into it.

          9  Just basically saying the fact that we don't involve

         10  Hispanic DBEs and others means that we have a net

         11  loss of billions of dollars of Latino businesses --

         12                 Was that two minutes?

         13                 -- In the City, and that is simply

         14  unacceptable, and we are pleased that the Council is

         15  closely looking at ways to change this.

         16                 A major reason for this disparity in

         17  New York City, is the fact that agencies, New York

         18  City agencies have been negligent in ensuring

         19  adherence to MWBE program goals and objectives.

         20  While the City is required to issue a certain number

         21  of contracts to minority and women businesses, they

         22  lack the staff and resources to track the number of

         23  contracts that MWBEs and DBEs receive and to monitor

         24  these requirements.

         25                 Second, there is a disconnect. And I
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          2  think this point was mentioned earlier, between City

          3  agencies, Hispanic, MWBEs, DBEs and Hispanic

          4  community-based organizations. It is I think

          5  critical that as we move forward that we involve

          6  community agencies in this process, in terms of

          7  certification, in terms of outreach.

          8                 One of the things that, you know, we

          9  obviously support this bill, but one of the things

         10  that we ask of you is to look at ways in terms of

         11  doing a public education campaign in Latino

         12  neighborhoods, in a way that is bicultural and done

         13  in a way that's going to be heard by the community.

         14  And that I think is desperately needed for our

         15  community.

         16                 And also look at ways to involve

         17  community-based organizations in this work, in terms

         18  of getting business certified, in terms of bridging

         19  the information and access gaps that currently exist

         20  for a DBE community.

         21                 Once again, in conclusion, I want to

         22  commend the Committee members, Councilwoman Clarke,

         23  Councilwoman Reyna, and some of the other members of

         24  the Committee, for presenting this intro and for

         25  passing this Intro. 180 which is desperately needed
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          2  in our community, and I think it's a step in the

          3  right direction.

          4                 Again, thank you. And thank you for

          5  the opportunity to speak.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: I want to thank

          7  you all for your testimony as well. And just to

          8  respond a bit to some of the concerns that I think

          9  were raised by Ms. Wilkin, when this legislation was

         10  drafted, while it looks a lot like the MWBE law, we

         11  have been assured by Counsel here that the reason it

         12  looks that way is because now the MWBE law is part

         13  of the sections of the City Charter and the

         14  Administrative Code that designate responsibilities

         15  to SBS and the division. And any legislation that

         16  addresses these areas will contain MWBE language.

         17  And because MWBE is now a permanent part of the law,

         18  they are still two separate and distinct programs

         19  that will be administered by the same agency.

         20                 However, I think you've raised some

         21  very good concerns in your testimony, because this

         22  is new for everyone, and because it's so new, there

         23  is a lot of room for error, and one of the things

         24  that this Committee will certainly have to do is to

         25  make sure that every step of the way we're clear on
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          2  the distinction between the two, and certainly we

          3  would probably want to continue to ask the questions

          4  around the types of challenges that can hit this

          5  type of legislation and whether it would take the

          6  whole program down, both MWBE and DBE and those, you

          7  know, until I hear that's satisfied enough, enough,

          8  enough, I will continue to raise that question.

          9                 MR. McCAFFREY: One thing we simply

         10  raise is that you know those items that are there

         11  currently in the local law are justified and meet

         12  the standards in terms of Crosin and Adarand.

         13                 The DB component is not at this time,

         14  it's not to say that it cannot be, but at this time

         15  you do not have any predicate legal basis to be able

         16  to move forward in the same way as you have on the

         17  WMBEs. It is best to mirror and to have them in

         18  tandem. Certainly, given the exchange that took

         19  place with the Administration today, in how they

         20  would work in many ways in hand and thought, so

         21  that's the reason that we are very, very much --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: The rationale

         23  that we have been given around DBE was that standard

         24  is required when you're race-specific piece of

         25  legislation, but because DBE is race neutral, it
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          2  would not come under the same type of scrutiny.

          3                 MR. McCAFFREY: That doesn't justify

          4  the aspect of the terms of the seven percent. Those

          5  are the legal issues that go back. Once you end up,

          6  you have to have the entire item obviously fit under

          7  those decisions there.

          8                 And as I say, I think this can be

          9  done. I think it's something that you just have some

         10  work to do to be able to have it comply.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you very

         12  much. And we will certainly be looking at those

         13  issues.

         14                 I want to thank Mr. Calderon, as

         15  well, for your testimony here today.

         16                 MR. CALDERON: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Our next panel is

         18  Mr. John -- I think it's John Wang. Asian American

         19  Business Development Center.

         20                 Mr. Jim Heyliger of the Minority

         21  Business Leadership Council and AMENY, and Mr. Frank

         22  Garcia, Hispanic Chamber of Commerce, I believe.

         23                 Welcome, gentlemen, and please begin

         24  your testimony.

         25                 MR. WANG: Thank you. My name is John
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          2  Wang, Asian American Business Development Center. I

          3  am a little confused or alarmed by the earlier

          4  Commissioner Schwartz's statement, that DBE does not

          5  include MWBE, a member of the MWBE, particularly

          6  minority business communities, since there is the

          7  MWBE program that's already in place, and I hope

          8  that's not a case. Because we have discussion with a

          9  member of the Council and then to fully assure that

         10  DBE are certainly intended for members such as

         11  Hispanic Asian Business Community, who are included

         12  in MWBE program. If the DBE legislation is to

         13  benefit anyone, I think certainly Asian and Hispanic

         14  business ought to be considered and DBE included.

         15                 So, I hope that is clear.

         16                 And also that Asian American Business

         17  Department Center that we are supporting the 180-A

         18  Intro and provide, I guess, the following provisions

         19  that's to be included. And we have discussed I think

         20  that 180-A should be a separate law than 129 and we

         21  have been assured that that's two separate law, and

         22  so we hope that, you know, will be passed as a

         23  separate law, not as an amendment to the Local Law

         24  129.

         25                 And the second point is that we see
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          2  the Citywide contracting goal for DBE current

          3  proposed as seven percent, and we would like to see

          4  that increased to ten percent, considering that the

          5  population of Asian Hispanic businesses in the City

          6  certainly account for a large part of the

          7  population, and many of the businesses in those two

          8  communities, really constitute a major portion of

          9  the minority business in the City. So, ten percent

         10  are things that ought to be considered.

         11                 And certainly, a third point, is that

         12  a very strong monitoring mechanism needs to be

         13  established to ensure the City agency comply with

         14  the purpose of the Intro. 180-A so that Hispanic

         15  Asian business interest are fully included in the

         16  agency's procurement policy, and that the Council

         17  will provide a strong oversight, as the speaker

         18  earlier suggested, that to make sure that the

         19  regulation of those agencies are fully reviewed by

         20  the Council and before they're put into place.

         21                 And the fourth, and the last point,

         22  we hope the City Council will work with the

         23  Administration in providing funding for the MWBE

         24  communities various business organizations, so that

         25  they can carry outreach, certification, technical
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          2  assistance and monitoring functions for the DBE

          3  program and the MWBE program.

          4                 It is important that these business

          5  organizations are included so that with the funding,

          6  proper funding that's available, so they could do an

          7  effective and adequate job in helping the minority

          8  businesses in the City to benefit from the

          9  procurement process in this City.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MR. HEYLIGER: Good afternoon. My name

         12  is James Heyliger. I'm the co-chair of the Minority

         13  Business Leadership Council, and President of the

         14  Association of Minority Enterprise of New York, a

         15  29-year-old minority and WBE trade association.

         16                 The NBLC, we're very cognizant of the

         17  Council's desire for creating a level playing field

         18  by the introduction of this new legislation. I must

         19  say the last 48 hours in debating this legislation

         20  is quite eye-opening and pressure packed, but I do

         21  appreciate the openness of the Council and my

         22  members even hear me sometimes to deal with the

         23  issue.

         24                 I think very, and significant this

         25  afternoon, though, was additional information by
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          2  various speakers to put on the table about some of

          3  the potential pitfalls that we would have.

          4                 I'd like to say that I see this as a

          5  major, major support for attacking the issue of

          6  unemployment, because if it's done correctly, then

          7  it means every City agency, all their contracts, we

          8  should be getting 22 percent, the way I figure it,

          9  if in fact we still put the seven and the 15, all

         10  right?

         11                 I think our greatest weapon, however,

         12  in monitoring and structuring this to meet our

         13  needs, as John and Frank will attest to, is our

         14  willingness to continue to communicate amongst

         15  ourselves. But what disturbs me most of all is after

         16  we go through all that we go through and come to a

         17  meeting of the minds, and we're not going to always

         18  agree on everything, I bring you back to reality

         19  that the Department that's been set up to implement

         20  these two laws, I won't say incompetent, because you

         21  might put it in the paper, let me say they're not

         22  ready, they do not have the experience to do this on

         23  their own. They're sharp, good people, who are well

         24  meaning, but they've never had this type of

         25  experience, for them to bring this out, and the
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          2  mistakes and answers to some of the questions about

          3  DBE, because they don't understand it, all right?

          4  And I think unless the City Council rides herd on

          5  them, periodic monitoring meetings, calling them

          6  back in, looking at how they promulgated their rules

          7  and regulations, giving us an opportunity to have

          8  input into that, we're going to have some of the

          9  pitfalls that former Council Member McCaffrey was

         10  speaking about.

         11                 I think all of us have come to the

         12  realization, that whatever way we can level the

         13  playing field is best for all of New York City, and

         14  Minority Business Leadership Council, along with the

         15  Hispanic communities, will work together with the

         16  Council to bring about this level playing field.

         17  It's in all of our best interests.

         18                 The hard fact, though, is that small,

         19  15 to 18 percent of the people in this town, still

         20  want 95 percent of all the economics of this town,

         21  and in order for this town to continue to prosper,

         22  we must change the dynamics. And I think the City

         23  Council, as currently constituted, as the right

         24  paradigm to make that happen. And we thank you for

         25  this opportunity, and we are in support of the
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          2  legislation as two separate pieces of legislation.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. GARCIA: Good afternoon,

          5  Councilwoman.

          6                 Firstly, my name is Frank Garcia. I'm

          7  President of the New York State Coalition of

          8  Hispanic Chambers. I was a former President of Bronx

          9  Hispanic Chamber and I own a company, a minority

         10  company in the empowerment zone in the South Bronx,

         11  Millennium Recycled Toner.

         12                 This legislation to us is a very

         13  important legislation, the DBE bill, because it

         14  really helps us identify what is a disadvantaged

         15  business.

         16                 I, myself, just won a major contract

         17  that came out in the Daily News last week of $4

         18  million because I'm a disadvantaged business. And I

         19  was competing about companies ten times bigger than

         20  mine and I was able to win this business with

         21  Columbia. This is creating 80 to 90 jobs in the

         22  South Bronx.

         23                 This is very important, this

         24  legislation, but we want to make sure the

         25  legislation was done the right way, and I want to

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  thank both of you for supporting the Latino

          3  community on the first bill that because of the

          4  disparity study we really didn't get the numbers

          5  that the Latino or the Asian Community expected

          6  again in both communities. But instead of us

          7  complaining about it, I think we've been proactive

          8  with the press conference we did on the Latino

          9  community, getting Latinos and certified for the

         10  first time in Spanish. I have my colleague from the

         11  Federation here, that's one of the biggest Hispanic

         12  organizations in the United States, in New York,

         13  talk about us letting Latinos in certification in

         14  DBE.

         15                 We support the bill. And we support

         16  Reyna, the work that she's doing, because she

         17  understands that the Latino community right now

         18  doesn't understand too much about the DBE or the

         19  MBE, and they're asking what is this, will this take

         20  away from us, will this help us? And I just want to

         21  say that today we support the bill. The 14 Hispanic

         22  Chambers of the Bronx, Hispanic Chamber of Queens,

         23  the Women's Chamber, all of the Chamber of Commerces

         24  that we represent.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: I want to thank
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          2  you gentlemen very much for your testimony here

          3  today. This is a work-in-progress, and we hope to be

          4  able to work out as many of the pitfall, challenges,

          5  concerns that have been raised, to make sure that we

          6  do have the appropriate legislation in place, and

          7  just as important, the implementation and

          8  promulgation of rules, that doesn't undermine that.

          9                 MR. HEYLIGER: Thank you.

         10                 MR. GARCIA: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 And then we have two final folks for

         14  testimony here today. Ram Tirumala of Yu and

         15  Associates, and I think this is Shan.

         16                 Okay, I'm going to have you pronounce

         17  your name when you get seated so I don't mess it up.

         18                 Shan.

         19                 MR. SHANMUGAM: Yes. My name is Shan

         20  Shanmugam, I am the President of SCI Engineering,

         21  and I've been in the business for 25 years. We have

         22  worked for all kinds of agencies, all City agencies,

         23  ten, 15 years ago, in the last ten years we've

         24  gotten I think from New York City. And we work for

         25  Army Corps, Coast Guard, Department of Justice, FBI,
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          2  CAA and so on. We have done repeat projects and we

          3  have received excellent evaluations, eight or nine,

          4  out of ten, and the people who have told us that we

          5  are not doing satisfactory work, we are doing

          6  exemplary work. And now you are now excluding us

          7  from 127 -- 129, all the Asians are excluded. We

          8  don't understand this.

          9                 The second one is another thing, if

         10  we just go back to, the DBE also is not helping us.

         11  We are not defining what it is, and I have been in

         12  this business, I am also the former chair for the

         13  DMWB Council of New York. I know this business. Let

         14  me share few things with you.

         15                 Example. You want to increase the

         16  opportunities. That's your intention. I applaud your

         17  intention. That's very good. This is not working

         18  this way.

         19                 Example: You want to start doing the

         20  certification. The certification is being done by 17

         21  other people, Port Authority, MTA, New York State,

         22  DOTs. Don't waste my money there. Just let us use it

         23  only for people who cannot get certified, you want

         24  to look at it, it's okay. Because I am certified by

         25  everybody. Don't waste my money. We don't have to do
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          2  that.

          3                 Certainly with the DBE program is

          4  actually meant for the federal offense all over the

          5  country. They have the program, they have the

          6  regulations. Don't reinvent the wheel and throw your

          7  money. These fellows don't know what they are

          8  talking about. And I am not saying race neutral,

          9  that's okay. Somebody is going through hell, we want

         10  to help them. That's what I'm here for. Another

         11  thing I'm saying is, we don't want to reinvent the

         12  wheel. We want to see how we can move forward.

         13                 I want to give another example here.

         14  I have 22 people right now working for me. Thirteen

         15  are minorities, six are women, 11 are Asian, four

         16  are blacks, and if anybody wants a first job, I want

         17  to be there guiding him, counseling him, giving him

         18  the first job so that he can go on the right track.

         19  We are helping all minorities.

         20                 The other thing that you are doing

         21  is, you are having three or four goals. No. It's not

         22  going to work. Let's say you give me a contract for

         23  a million dollars. I'm going to hire a black man,

         24  I'm going to get a white woman, I go to somebody,

         25  it's not going to work. We have one goal for the
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          2  entire City. Put in 25 percent for all trades,

          3  listing one goal. And out of the people, the most

          4  qualified people, they were the prime contractor and

          5  the agency, they will give the job. And everybody,

          6  we can do that and so on.

          7                 Follow the programs the federal

          8  government have, the ADA, upzone, and disadvantaged

          9  business and so on, 15 years ago Federal business

         10  call me and they said can you do an evaluating study

         11  for $100 million project in Brooklyn? We did. We got

         12  the job. We did the job. We have a commendation

         13  letter.

         14                 We want the goal there. The other

         15  thing that we are doing, the three or four goals is

         16  not going to work. All you are putting, seven

         17  percent.  We want 20 percent.

         18                 I will give you one more example so

         19  that you people will understand.

         20                 Let's say you give me a contract for

         21  $500,000, and now you are telling me that if you add

         22  up all this and so on, 25 and 30 percent, can bring

         23  you in three, four people. How many months of the

         24  people hired by the minority, black, Latino and so

         25  on, how long they are going to work on the job? Two
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          2  months? Two weeks? We need somebody on my job, and I

          3  am a prime contractor, I want from the inspector

          4  engineer who is going to work on this job one year

          5  or two years. You can't hire people for two days.

          6  It's not going to work.

          7                 And you want to create jobs, you want

          8  to create opportunities. You are excluding us.

          9                 I have been working on this. I want

         10  to say something. I have contributed to the New York

         11  City economy tens of millions of dollars in the last

         12  25 years, and before, the first job I was doing the

         13  security system for the Brooklyn Museum. When I

         14  finished the job, I said I am going to do something

         15  on my own.

         16                 I went to the DDS, they looked at me,

         17  they said, Shan, here is the job, go do it. I worked

         18  for all agencies in New York City before, in

         19  Giuliani Administration he killed the program. And

         20  nobody stood up. He killed the program and no one

         21  cared, for you, me, everybody else and so on. And

         22  nobody cared.

         23                 This cannot happen. Even if you don't

         24  give me any job, it's okay. Let us now look at the

         25  people who are really hurting. We want to give them
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          2  a job. We want to give them an opportunity. Another

          3  thing also, a lot of people are creating all these

          4  classes for opportunity and so on. Let us not

          5  duplicate it. You see who is doing it, let's use

          6  that program. The regionals are giving classes in

          7  the excel (sic) and so on, let them do it. We don't

          8  want to duplicate that. We want to look at what you

          9  have.

         10                 The certification, let's not

         11  duplicate it. It's many cases who are not problem,

         12  then those things can be looked at.

         13                 Similarly, the multiple goals, no,

         14  you are telling me Caucasian woman. What about the

         15  non-Caucasian? Are you going to discriminate? The

         16  way it sounds, you are Caucasian woman, what about

         17  non-Caucasian? The way it sound, you are

         18  discriminating them.

         19                 We want all of them can compete for a

         20  job, and let us have it 25 percent, because you are

         21  spending millions of dollars, and let's create the

         22  jobs.

         23                 Federal government doing excellent

         24  job. We are innovative, we are creative, we are

         25  competitive, we are creating jobs. Most of the jobs
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          2  are created by small business, and this is not the

          3  way to go.

          4                 If you want, I will edit you a thing

          5  and give it to you tomorrow morning, because I want

          6  to help you. This is my country. I am not Asian, I

          7  am American. My son a doctor, my son is a

          8  cardiologist, we are helping people. We are saving

          9  people. I am at your service. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you very

         11  much, Mr. Shan.

         12                 MR. SHANMUGAM: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: We really

         14  appreciate your testimony here today. And all of

         15  that will be taken into consideration as we move

         16  this forward.

         17                 And anyone else here for testimony

         18  today? Well, seeing no one else, I call this hearing

         19  adjourned.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 28th day of March 2006.
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